
 

ACTION MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF VILLA PARK, CALIFORNIA 

 
December 15, 2015 

Regular Meeting 
 

 

GENERAL SESSION 
6:30 p.m. – City Council Chambers 

 
 
ROLL CALL - Mayor Fascenelli called the General Session to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS 
 
PRESENT: Barnett, Collacott, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG – Mayor Pro Tem Mills 
 
PRESENTATIONS/ ANNOUNCEMENTS/ INTRODUCTIONS 
 

 Orange County Fire Authority update 

 Orange County Sheriff’s Department update 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Mayor Fascenelli opened public comments.  
 
Frederick Fascenelli, Villa Park resident, was not able to stay for public comments but 
provided a powerpoint presentation that was shown. His powerpoint covered several 
items including comments made by Ms. Pauly at previous City Council meetings; late 
insurance premium payments and letters written to Councilmembers Nelson and 
Collacott; and conversations made between Ms. Pauly and Councilmembers Nelson 
and Collacott. 
 
Jim Warden, Villa Park resident, spoke about health insurance premium payment 
records and stated Councilman Barnett and Mayor Pro Tem Mills have both been late 
on their payments. He expressed concern that the city finances are run loose and 
suggested Councilman Barnett, Mayor Pro Tem Mills and Mayor Fascenelli resign from 
their positions.  
 
Wayne Silzel, Villa Park resident, spoke about the importance of premiums being paid 
on time and the city should not be advancing funds to cover delinquent payments. He 
talked about the distrust among the City Council members and said some items on this 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 21 

 
agenda should have been discussed in closed session. Mr. Silzel stated the City 
Council should be focusing on items that affect the entire city.  
 
Mary Beth Felcyn, Villa Park resident, requested to move item 21, Termination of Law 
Enforcement Advisory Committee, up on the agenda.  
 
Donna Buxton, Villa Park resident, said she was disappointed that Mr. Fascenelli was 
not present for his time during public comments. She spoke about how proactive and 
creative Councilmembers Nelson and Collacott have been on the council and 
committees they serve on.  
 
Deborah Pauly, Villa Park resident, commented on the powerpoint presentation that 
was made by Mr. Fascenelli during public comments. She spoke about the late health 
insurance payments made by Mayor Fascenelli. Ms. Pauly talked about Mayor Pro Tem 
Mills’ wife and articles she has written. She spoke about Councilmembers Nelson and 
Collacott and the relationship they have on the committees they serve on together. Ms. 
Pauly commented about the administrative clerk who was placed on leave. She asked 
that the City Council listen to the public and move item 21, Termination of the Law 
Enforcement Advisory Committee, up on the agenda.  
 
Sandra Murg, Villa Park resident, spoke about the Mayor’s response to her public 
comments she made at the last City Council meeting.  
 
Rich Murg, Villa Park resident, spoke about his law enforcement experience and serving 
on the Law Enforcement Advisory Committee (LEAC). He suggested having health 
insurance premium payments automatically deducted from the policyholders’ bank 
account. 
 
Mary Silzel, Villa Park resident, stated the councilmembers job is to listen to the voice of 
the residents. She said the majority vote went to Councilmembers Nelson and Collacott, 
along with previous Councilmember Pauly when she was elected.  
 
Karen Russell, Villa Park resident, introduced herself as Senior Deputy District Attorney. 
She spoke about the way the City Council meeting is being handled. Ms. Russell said 
accountability is the best way to handle a mistake. She suggested focusing on the 
larger issues and not on the small ones. This will only lower the bar on what is expected 
by elected officials.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli closed public comments.  
 
Councilman Barnett suggested moving Item 21, Termination of the Law Enforcement 
Advisory Committee, up on the agenda.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli stated her husband could not stay during public comments in person 
because of his obligation to their three young children.  
 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 21 

 
21.     Councilmember Requested Matter (Fascenelli): Termination of Law 

Enforcement Advisory Committee 
  
Mayor Fascenelli gave a brief history of the creation of LEAC. She said the reason it 
was created was to focus on crime. Mayor Fascenelli stated the neighborhood watch 
program is a separate program that is not run by the city and cannot be eliminated by 
the city. She said LEAC has taken on items that are outside of their scope. 
 
Councilman Nelson asked why Mayor Fascenelli brought this item forward. 
 
Councilman Collacott said residents expressed their concern that there was not enough 
formal law enforcement safety in the city. He stated items LEAC discuss are related to 
law enforcement.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Mills thanked those who serve on LEAC. He spoke about the current 
issue of a loud noise nuisance home and said it is being looked at by local law 
enforcement. Councilman Collacott replied the Sheriff and City Manager have both 
been aware of this issue for several months. He said LEAC was given the idea to have 
street sweeping ticketing by the City Manager. Councilman Collacott relayed the rental 
issue, and inspecting homes, was brought up by the City Manager as well.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli opened public comments.  
 
Vice Rossini, Villa Park resident, spoke about Ms. Kincaid approaching the City Council 
regarding a nuisance neighbor and was told they could not help her. He expressed 
concern that this item is on the agenda. Mr. Rossini spoke about several 
accomplishments of LEAC as well as several items in the works.  
 
Ellen Kincaid, Villa Park resident, expressed concern and frustration about her 
neighbors partying and lack of care of their home and yard. She has reached out to the 
City Manager and the Sheriff’s Department, and felt she had little to no remedy. Ms. 
Kincade said she approached LEAC and within two weeks, there has been 
improvement on the trash issue.  
 
Doug Kincaid, Villa Park resident, spoke about the city’s municipal code and the 
problem with it being outdated and difficult to enforce. He said Chapman College, along 
with LEAC, and the City of Orange, have been working together to remedy this issue.  
 
Councilman Nelson stated LEAC has been working with Chapman College and the City 
of Orange to help remedy the issue of this nuisance house. LEAC has been looking at 
Villa Park’s loud party ordinance and have come up with a recommendation to 
strengthen the ordinance, shut down loud partying and place pressure on the owners of 
the property. 
 
Mayor Fascenelli stated the City Council received a letter from Ms. Kincaid regarding 
the noise nuisance. She responded to her after speaking with City Manager 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 21 

 
Hildenbrand to get the history of the property. Mayor Fascenelli said there has been a 
lot done on this issue prior to LEAC’s involvement.  
 
City Manager Hildenbrand said he has been working on this issue for quite a while. He 
spoke with vector control and had them come out to the property. The process for code 
enforcement is quite lengthy. He has spoken with the property owner and said several 
items have been remedied. The Sherriff’s Department needs to be notified as part of the 
process. City Manager Hildenbrand stated the city has cited the owner as well.  
 
City Attorney Megan Garibaldi said there are due process concerns when it comes to 
code enforcement. The city needs to provide a notice and give the property owner a 
chance to respond. She said the property owners have rights and that due process is in 
place depending on the citation. City Attorney Garibaldi stated that under direction from 
the City Council, she could look into the penal code and city code in regards to loud 
noise nuisances.  
 
Councilman Collacott spoke about the street sweeping issue. He said the nuisance 
property had issues with parked cars and trashcans not placed out for pick-up. 
Councilman Collacott stated City Manager Hildenbrand, not LEAC, gave the suggestion 
of enforcing street sweeping tickets.  
 
City Manager Hildenbrand stated LEAC has been helpful to the City by providing a law 
enforcement perspective.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli expressed concern with changing the city code for just one incident.  
 
Sandra Murg, Villa Park resident, spoke about the importance of LEAC.  
 
John Whitman, Villa Park resident, serves on LEAC and is retired from law 
enforcement. He read the remainder of Mr. Rossini’s public comments. He spoke about 
the importance of law enforcement expertise that is provided through LEAC. 
 
Mary Beth Felcyn, Villa Park resident, spoke about LEAC and those who are involved in 
the committee. She said it is a great resource for the community.  
 
Jim Warden, Villa Park resident, spoke about a recall.   
 
Janice Bjorklund, Villa Park resident, stated LEAC is a great asset to the committee and 
does not understand why there is discussion to disband it.  
 
Donna Buxton, Villa Park resident, stated LEAC has been addressing issues regarding 
crime. She said the volunteers bring 180 years of combined professional experience. 
She thanked Councilman Barnett for his work on school traffic issues.  
 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of 21 

 
Tim Cronin, Villa Park resident, thanked the City Council for volunteering their time. She 
said the City Council should encourage looking into the code and working with the 
planning department. Mr. Cronan said council should be sensitive to property values.  
 
Deborah Pauly, Villa Park resident, read a letter on behalf of Lauri Triber. Ms. Triber 
wrote she was in opposition of dissolving LEAC. She commended Mary Silzel and the 
neighborhood watch program.  
 
Deborah Pauly, Villa Park resident, thanked those who serve on LEAC. She said Mr. 
Rossini should have been given additional time during the public comment section. Ms. 
Pauly talked about the history of the neighborhood watch program and her involvement. 
She spoke about Item 22, the new policy for the health insurance premium.  
 
Karen Russell, Villa Park resident, spoke about the importance of all the law 
enforcement experience on LEAC.  
 
Rob Lynn, Villa Park resident, spoke in opposition of removing LEAC. He shared an 
experience he had with kids trespassing at a pump station and the response he had 
from LEAC and Mary Silzel.  
 
Jay Wasserman, Villa Park resident, serves on the Law Enforcement Advisory 
Committee. He spoke about the benefits to the city that LEAC has provided and will 
continue doing. Mr. Wasserman would like to improve the communication between 
LEAC and the City Council.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Mills spoke about the importance of communication. He has not been 
receiving all the reports and minutes for the committee as well as the neighborhood 
watch group.  
 
Wayne Silzel, Villa Park resident, replied the information has been sent via email. He 
said he would check Mayor Pro Tem Mills’ information to verify it is correct.  
 
Jim Reichert, Villa Park resident, served as a City Council member 40 years ago. He 
expressed concern with some of the items on the agenda and that they should not be 
discussed in a public forum. Mr. Reichert stated the City Council should be helping the 
community and work together.  
 
Tom Dodge, Villa Park resident, was appointed as co-coordinator for the CERT 
program. He spoke about the importance of LEAC to the community. 
 
Ellen Kincaid, Villa Park resident, spoke about the help she received from LEAC. She 
said the committee is important to the community.  
 
Wayne Silzel, Villa Park resident, serves on LEAC. He said the committee covers all 
aspects of law enforcement. He stated they have over 130 people on the mailing list for 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 6 of 21 

 
the committee. He thanked his wife for the work she has done on the committee. He 
also thanked the public for speaking in support of LEAC. 
 
Karen Goldberg, Villa Park resident, thanked those who serve on the committee. She 
spoke about protecting the volunteers in terms of citizen patrol and dealing with the 
public.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli closed public comments.  
 
A motion was made by Councilman Nelson and seconded by Councilman Collacott to 
not take action on this item.  
 
The City Council recessed at 8:57 p.m. and resumed at 9:07 p.m.  
 
Councilman Barnett spoke about the importance of communication. He talked about 
restrictions due to Brown Act rules.  
 
Councilman Nelson stated when someone from the public approaches LEAC during 
public comments, their issue is agendized for the next committee meeting. 
 
Councilman Barnett gave a brief history of how LEAC was formed and the importance 
of law enforcement. He spoke about several items that have come up with LEAC and 
the repeat of reports given to the City Council. Councilman Barnett said he had 
suggested changes to the committee before the meeting tonight. But, after hearing the 
public comments, and City Manager Hildenbrand’s comments, he has decided 
otherwise. He spoke in support of not taking action on this item.   
 
A motion was made by Councilman Nelson, seconded by Councilman Collacott, and 
approved by the following role call vote, to not take action on this item.  
 
AYES:  Barnett, Collacott, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Waive reading in full of all ordinances and resolution on the agenda.  

 

A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Mills, seconded by Councilman Nelson, and 
approved by the following roll call vote, to waive reading in full of the ordinances and 
resolutions on the agenda. 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 7 of 21 

 
AYES:  Barnett, Collacott, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 

2. Zoning Code amendments relating to the prohibition of cultivation of 

medical marijuana, dispensaries, deliveries and all medical marijuana-
related activities, pursuant to the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety 
Act (MMRSA).    

 
City Attorney Meagan Garibaldi gave a powerpoint presentation with a brief history of 
the medical marijuana laws in California; Federal law; and the Medical Marijuana 
Regulation and Safety Act. This includes prohibiting delivery, dispensaries and 
cultivation. 
 
Mayor Fascenelli opened and closed public comments since there were none.  
 
Councilman Barnett stated the code does not provide for civil penalties and attorney 
fees. City Attorney Garibaldi said they have incorporated code enforcement actions in 
the municipal code.  
 
A motion was made by Mayor Fascenelli, seconded by Councilman Barnett, and 
approved by the following roll call vote, to approve the first Ordinance No. 2015-597, 
amending the Villa Park Zoning Code to prohibit all cannabis and medical marijuana-related 
activities within the City of Villa Park to the maximum extent permitted by law, and schedule 
a reading and adoption for January 26, 2016. 
 
AYES:  Barnett, Collacott, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (ITEMS #3-16) 
 
Mayor Fascenelli pulled Item 13, Authorization to Purchase a Used Police Vehicle. 
 
Councilman Barnett pulled Item 4, Capital Projects Status Report; and Item 9, Model 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance. 
 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 8 of 21 

 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Mills, seconded by Councilman Nelson, and 
approved by the following roll call vote, to approve Consent Calendar Items 3, 5-8, 10-
12, & 14-16. 
 
AYES:  Barnett, Collacott, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
3.       Warrants and disbursements from November 7, 2015 through December 7, 

2015. 
  
ACTION:      Approved warrants and disbursements in the amount of $361,012.19. 
  
  
5.       Request approval of City Council Minutes of November 17, 2015.    
  
ACTION:      Approved. 
  
6. First Amendment to Employment Contract with City Manager. 
 
ACTION: Approved and authorized the Mayor to execute the First Amendment to 

Employment Contract between the City of Villa Park and Jarad 
Hildenbrand.  

 
7. Measure M2 2014-2015 Annual Report.  
  
ACTION: That the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2015-3347 approving the 

annual Measure M2 expenditure report.  
 

8. Revised effective date to an amendment of the waste disposal agreement.  
  
ACTION:  Adopted Resolution No. 2015-3348 approving a Revised Effective Date to 

the WDA Amendment between the County of Orange and City of Villa 
Park to allow for the continued importation of waste at the County’s three 
landfills and to extend the terms of the WDA through June 30, 2025.  

 
10.      Consideration of Investment Advisory Committee Appointments. 
  
ACTON:     That City Council re-appoint Dan Carlberg, Dr. Lynne Doti, Joe McCarthy 

and Brad Reese to the Investment Advisory Committee for two-year term 
expiring in January 2018. 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 9 of 21 

 
 

11.      Consideration of Law Enforcement Advisory Committee Appointments. 
  
ACTION:    That City Council re-appoint Mike Felix, Jay Wasserman, and Erik Reynolds 

to the Law Enforcement Advisory Committee for two-year term expiring in 
January 2018. 

  
12.      Consideration of Villa Park Community Services Foundation Appointments. 
  
ACTION:     That the City Council, as the Members of the Foundation, re-appoint 

Directors Carol Duensing, Andie Mills, Doug Bender, Kelly Jordan and 
MJ Lucero for two-year terms.  

 
14.      Arterial Pavement Management Program OCTA Cooperative Agreement No. 

C-5-3634. 
  
ACTION:     That the City Council approved and authorized the Mayor to execute 

Cooperative Agreement No. C-5-3634, by and between OCTA and City 
of Villa Park to define roles and responsibilities for the Arterial Pavement 
Management Program project, Taft Avenue Rehabilitation Project. 

 

15.      Award of Contract – FY 15/16 Street Rehabilitation Project. 
  
ACTION:     That the City Council  

 
1) Approve the plans and specifications for the "FY 15/16 Street 

Rehabilitation project,"  
2) Authorize the Mayor to execute a contract with Hardy & Harper, Inc., in the 

amount of $501,000 for the "FY 15/16 Street Rehabilitation Project," and 
3) Authorize the Mayor to execute a contract with CivilSource, Inc., in the 

amount of $38,050 to provide inspection services for the "FY 15/16 Street 
Rehabilitation Project." 
 

16. Consideration of 2016 City Council meeting schedule.  
  
ACTION:  That the City Council approve the schedule of the 2016 City Council 

meetings. 
 
PULLED ITEMS 
 
4.        Capital Project Status Report.  
 
Councilman Barnett inquired when the Mesa Improvement draft would be brought for 
the City Council to review. City Manager Hildenbrand replied preliminary information 
would be available Friday.  



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 10 of 21 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Mills asked if this was just the improvement and not the widening. City 
Manager Hildenbrand replied yes. He said a letter would be sent to residents near the 
project at the end of next week. In addition, a town hall meeting will be held on January 
23rd.  
 
A motion was made by Councilman Barnett, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mills, and 
approved by the following roll call vote, to receive and file this report.  
 
AYES:  Barnett, Collacott, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
 9. Model water efficient landscape ordinance.  
  
Councilman Barnett asked how permits and fee structures were going to be 
administered and who was going to be responsible for them. City Manager Hildenbrand 
replied if the project was significant, the project would be passed along to the contracted 
plan checker, otherwise Building Official Bill Tarin would handle the rest. Councilman 
Barnett asked for a report at the next meeting on the parameters and the size of lots.   
 
A motion was made by Councilman Barnett, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mills, and 
approved by the following roll call vote, to approve a second reading and adopt 
Ordinance No. 2015-596. 
 
AYES:  Barnett, Collacott, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
13.      Authorization to purchase a used police vehicle. 
  
Mayor Fascenelli gave a brief history of obtaining the vehicle. The funds to purchase the 
vehicle are with the Community Services Foundation and they are requesting several 
conditions before they release the money to the city. These items include: a grant 
written to obtain the vehicle; the city taking complete responsibility for maintenance and 
insurance of the vehicle; and to obtain the minutes from this meeting stating the 
foundation is not liable for any accidents or injuries.  



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 11 of 21 

 
Mayor Fascenelli opened and closed public comments since there were none.  
 
City Manager Hildenbrand stated the City of Villa Park is self-insured.  
 
Councilman Nelson said the grant request and the minutes should be sufficient for the 
Foundation.  
 
City Manager Hildenbrand said he had placed the grant in the foundations box, but 
there was an issue with them receiving it. City Manager Hildenbrand stated the City of 
Villa Park is 100% liable for the police vehicle.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli said the foundation also expressed concern with ongoing expenses on 
the vehicle and who would be responsible for them.  
 
Councilman Barnett suggested composing a letter from the City Council responding to 
the foundation’s questions and/or requests. 
 
A motion was made by Mayor Fascenelli, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mills, and 
approved by the following roll call vote, to authorize the City Manager to purchase used 
police vehicle(s) in an amount not to exceed $8,500; and direct staff to draft a letter for 
the City Council to the foundation in regards to the items they are requesting to be 
addressed.  
 
AYES:  Barnett, Collacott, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
Mayor Fascenelli said the Foundation would move the grant request up before their 
quarterly review.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
17. Senior Mobility Program Status.  
  
Finance Director Michelle Danaher gave the staff report. The project has been well 
received by the public and now the funds from Measure M2, have been exhausted. Staff 
presented three options on how to address the SMP program. These include: Option 1- 
suspending the program, effective December 31, 2015 and reinstate it on July 1, 2016 
when new funding is received from OCT; Option 2- subsidizing the SMP 100% and 
authorize spending of $16,300; and Option 3- leave the SMP active and adjust the 
parameters of it to have restrictions to reduce the usage and reduce the amount to be 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 12 of 21 

 
subsidized by the City of Villa Park. Also, to authorize a budget adjustment for a dollar 
amount the City Council may request.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli said this has been a successful program but there had been some 
abuse to the program that City Manager Hildenbrand addressed. Her intent was to 
never have the city subsidize this program.  
 
Councilman Collacott spoke in support of option 3. He suggested reducing the distance 
to 15 miles and to have a co-pay of $5 per ride. Councilman Collacott talked about 
approaching the Community Services Foundation to help fund the project.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli supports Councilman Collacott approaching the foundation for 
additional funding. She suggested suspending the program and see if a donation would 
be made by the foundation.   
 
Councilman Collacott said he would also ask the foundation to conduct a special 
meeting to reduce the amount of delay to reinstitute the program.  
 
City Manager Hildenbrand suggested looking into specific destinations and staying 
within the city limit.  
 
Councilman Nelson spoke in support of option 3 and adjusting the mileage so there is 
no overspending.  
 
City Manager Hildenbrand said in order to have the program run until July 1, 2016, 
council would need to ask the Community Services Foundation for $10,000; scale back 
the mileage and on the amount of times the service is used per person. 
 
Councilman Barnett expressed concern that some people who do not need the service 
are using it. City Manager Hildenbrand replied he does not think this is happening.  
 
A motion was made by Councilman Collacott, and seconded by Councilman Nelson, to 
suspend the program after December 31, 2015; to request a $10,000 donation from the 
Community Services Foundation along with a request for an emergency meeting; and to 
lower the mileage and charge a co-pay for each ride.    
 
Mayor Fascenelli opened public comments.  
 
Sandra Murg, Villa Park resident, suggested to suspend the program for now and to 
have stricture rules for mileage.  
 
Donna Buxton, Villa Park resident, suggested a Senior Advisory Committee. 
 
Mayor Fascenelli closed public comments. 
 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 13 of 21 

 
City Manager Hildenbrand spoke about the items the City Council discussed. These 
included having a copay of $5 for each-way; reducing the mileage from 20 to 15 miles; 
request an emergency meeting to ask for a $10,000 grant from the Community Services 
Foundation; and allow four round-way trips each month per person. In addition, the 
program will remain active until December 31, 2015.  
 
Councilman Nelson suggested not amending the program until the grant is received. 
City Manager Hildenbrand stated if the foundation approves the grant, then staff will 
continue with the changes to the parameters.  
 
A motion was made by Councilman Collacott, seconded by Councilman Nelson, and 
approved by the following role call vote, to request a grant of $10,000 from the 
Community Services Foundation and continue the program until the end of the year. If 
funds are received, staff will amend the program with the parameters discussed. If 
funding is not received, the program would be suspended until July 1, 2016. 
 
AYES:  Barnett, Collacott, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER MATTERS 
 
18.      Appointment of the City’s Designated Representative to the Orange County 

Vector Control Board. 
  
Mayor Fascenelli relayed the Vector Control Board year-end is in December and that is 
why this item is on the agenda. It is a two-year term.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli nominated Councilman Collacott to the appointment of the City’s 
designated representative on the Orange County Vector Control Board. Councilman 
Collacott declined the nomination. 
 
Councilman Collacott spoke about the nomination of Councilman Nelson to this 
position. He said Councilman Nelson would be a great asset and would provide a 
presence for the City of Villa Park on both the Vector Control Board and the California 
Special District Association where he currently serves as President.  
 
A motion was made by Councilman Collacott, seconded by Councilman Barnett, and 
approved by the following role call vote, to appoint Councilman Nelson as the City’s 
designated representative to the Orange County Vector Control Board.  
 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 14 of 21 

 
AYES:  Collacott, Barnett, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
19.     Councilmember Requested Matter (Fascenelli): Code of Conduct of Council 

Committees. 
  
Mayor Fascenelli stated that in order to keep transparency within the city, she is 
suggesting having audio recordings prepared at all sanctioned meetings. The audio 
recording would then be uploaded to the website and be available to the public. Mayor 
Fascenelli suggested it would be the responsibility of the Chairman and the 
councilmember representative serving on that specific committee to make sure the 
audio recording is done. 
 
Councilman Nelson said this is not a councilmember function, but a staff function to 
ensure there is an audio recording. He stated if minutes are wanted, city staff should be 
responsible for them.  
 
Councilman Collacott said all meetings are open to the public and are noticed.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli opened and closed public comment since there were none.  
 
City Manager Hildenbrand said he attends the majority of the committee meetings. He 
offered to prepare a brief summary or action minutes for these meetings. City Manager 
Hildenbrand stated he could try it on a six-month trial period.  
 
City Manager Hildebrand spoke about purchasing an audio recorder and having it 
available for the meetings. He could look into how to upload the recordings on-line.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Mills suggested having committee meetings conducted closer to the 
end of the City Managers workday.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli talked about an email she received from City Manager Hildenbrand 
regarding on online sexual harassment course. She spoke about Councilman Nelson 
taking the course.  
 
Councilman Nelson replied he took a sexual harassment course some time ago and 
learned that only supervisors are required to take it. In addition, he heard from the 
California Department of Fair Housing, that City Council members are required to do the 
training as well. Mayor Fascenelli replied the City Council is not required by law to take 
the course.  



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 15 of 21 

 
 

City Attorney Megan Garibaldi stated AB1825 requires supervisors to take the training. 

It is not expressly stated in the act that it includes council members. She said her office 
has suggested that the City Council take the course.  Currently, there is an amendment 
to this law looking into this option. 
 
Mayor Fascenelli suggested expanding the training to committee members and at their 
own expense. Mayor Pro Tem Mills said the city should pay for the training since the 
committee members are volunteering. Mayor Fascenelli replied it is not common for 
cities to pay for volunteers to take the course.  
 
Councilman Nelson stated it is mandatory for just supervisors, and that volunteers are 
not supervisors. He feels this will be an issue for people who want to volunteer.  
 
Councilman Barnett said he hoped council members have enough wisdom that they are 
within decorum so that this is not an issue.  
 
City Manager Hildenbrand stated elected officials are not specifically named currently in 
the law but that there may be a change in the law next year to include them.  
 

City Attorney Megan Garibaldi said committee members are in less of a supervisory role 

but that there are always benefits to additional training.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli opened public comments.  
 
Sandra Murg, Villa Park resident, reiterated it is not required by law for the city council 
or volunteers to take the course.  
 
Wayne Silzel, Villa Park resident, spoke in opposition of having volunteers take the 
sexual harassment training.  
 
Richard Murg, Villa Park resident, stated councilmembers are not supervisors so the 
training does not apply to them.  
 
Deborah Pauly, Villa Park resident, spoke in opposition to advocating extending 
additional mandates on volunteers.  
 
Donna Buxton, Villa Park resident, stated this item is not necessary and should be 
removed from any more discussion.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli closed public comments.  
 
20.     Councilmember Requested Matter (Fascenelli): Inappropriate Code of 

Conduct of Councilmembers. 
  



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 16 of 21 

 
Mayor Fascenelli spoke about her late health insurance policy payments and the events 
that followed. She apologized to the community and staff.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli addressed the issue of a fraudulent letter written and the ramifications 
that transpired from it. She spoke about Councilman Collacott and his communication 
with the City of Villa Park’s administrative assistant. Mayor Fascenelli talked about a 
phone call City Manager Hildenbrand received from the District Attorney’s office 
regarding a misuse of public funds, which stemmed from a complaint that was filed from 
Councilman Nelson. She expressed distress that Councilman Nelson did not first 
approach the City Council, City Manager or the City Attorney before filing the compliant.  
Mayor Fascenelli spoke about a fraudulent invoice that was attached to Councilman 
Nelson’s complaint filed to the District Attorney.  
 
Councilman Nelson stated he felt there was something wrong and thought the District 
Attorney was an appropriate person to report it.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli spoke about unprofessional emails between Councilman Collacott and 
the administrative assistant. She talked about the two other previous council members 
who were also late on their payments and did not pay any late fees.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli opened public comment. 
 
Richard Murg, Villa Park resident, spoke about the sexual harassment course and that it 
is a waste of time.  
 
Sandra Murg, Villa Park resident, spoke in opposition of late payments being made and 
the city covering until it is paid.  
 
Mary Silzel, Villa Park resident, suggested having those who pay into the health plan 
premium to either pay for the entire year up front, or make quarterly payments with a 
small fee attached.  
 
Wayne Silzel, Villa Park resident, stated the council has received every one of his 
emails regarding LEAC since he did not receive any notices that the email did not go 
through. He suggested City Council discuss their concerns that do not affect the city 
privately.  
 
Donna Buxton, Villa Park resident, said Mayor Fascenelli’s comments seem to be some 
type of retaliation and deflection. She agreed with the actions taken by Councilman 
Nelson.  
 
Richard Murg, Villa Park resident, spoke in support of Councilman Nelson’s action to 
report to the DA.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli closed public comments.  
 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 17 of 21 

 
22. Policy regarding payments by members of the City Council for health 

benefits through the California Public Employees’ Retirement System.   
  
City Attorney Megan Garibaldi gave the staff report.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli recused herself from this item.  
 
City Attorney Megan Garibaldi stated the new policy would have invoices sent out the 
1st business day of each month for the premium due the following month. If the payment 
is not made on time, a late fee of $50 will be assessed. If the payment is still not paid, 
along with the initial $50 late fee prior to the last business day of the month, an 
additional late fee of $250 will be due immediately following the last business day of the 
month. Finally, if the amount owed, and the $300 in late fees are not paid, prior to the 
sixth day of the following month, the City will notified the policy holder and his or her 
enrollment in the CalPERS health program will be terminated. This will remain in effect 
until the next open enrollments period. If a policyholder is not able to pay the amount 
owed by the due date, they can request a hardship exception.  
 
Finance Director Michelle Danaher relayed she spoke with PERS to apply some of their 
requirements. She is still waiting to get additional information and could apply this at a 
later date.  
 
Finance Director Michelle Danaher reported there are eight people currently signed up 
for this program. 
 
Councilman Barnett asked if there has been any money lost to the city because of the 
late payments. Finance Director Michelle Danaher replied there was little to no loss of 
money.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Mills opened public comments.  
 
Wayne Silzel, Villa Park resident, spoke in support of the program. He suggested those 
who are involved should pay a year in advance and find outside financing to do so.  
 
Deborah Pauly, Villa Park resident, commended Mayor Fascenelli for recusing herself. 
She said the process should be simplified and that prepayment is a great idea.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Mills closed public comments.  
 
Councilman Barnett inquired if it is possible to have auto deductions. Finance Director 
Michelle Danaher replied yes.  
 
Councilman Collacott thanked Villa Park resident Donna Buxton for the solution of 
prepayment at a previous council meeting.   
 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 18 of 21 

 
A motion was made by Councilman Collacott, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mills, and 
approved by the following role call vote, to ask staff to come back with a revised policy, 
to look into prepayment to whatever extent CalPERS requires for notification and 
cancellation along with appropriate invoicing procedures to implement that approach.  
 
AYES:  Barnett, Collacott, Mills and Nelson 
 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: Fascenelli 
 
  
23.     Councilmember Requested Matter (Barnett): Discretionary Expenditure 

Policy.   
  
Councilman Barnett spoke about an email he sent to the City Manager regarding 
discretionary expenditure. He suggested any of these expenditures with a cost estimate 
in excess of $100,000, or reoccurring cost in excess of $50,000 should require polling of 
the city residents prior to approval. He said a document drafted by staff should include: 
a brief description of the project; cost estimate or range of costs; effect on city budget; 
additional cost to taxpayers; and a section indicating yes or no and a comments box.  
 
Councilman Barnett said the public response should be noted on the agenda calendar 
and verbally when voting on the item. This would help get the word out to the public and 
gather their feedback. Councilman Barnett suggested having polling conducted via 
email since it would be the most cost effective.  
 
City Manager Hildenbrand replied it is difficult to reach all the residents since not 
everyone has email. He suggested utilizing the Hidden Jewel magazine. City Manager 
Hildenbrand stated there are around 700-800 subscribers in the mass email that goes 
out, but that maybe half are residents and some subscribers have multiple emails that 
they subscribed.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli suggested bringing this item back with staff recommendation at the 
February meeting. 
 
Councilman Collacott asked that storm drain infrastructure be excluded as well.  
 
A motion was made by Councilman Barnett, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mills, and 
approved by the following roll call vote, to approve the concept and instruct staff to bring 
back suggestions to the February 2016 City Council meeting.  
 
AYES:  Barnett, Collacott, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 19 of 21 

 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
24.     Councilmember Requested Matter (Barnett): Making the Villa Park Marine 

Thanksgiving a City event. 
  
Councilman Barnett gave a brief overview of the event. He has been handling the event 
and would like to pass it over to the city since there is permanent staff available. 
Councilman Barnett stated it would take 10 to 20 hours of staff time to see this event 
through. He would like to agendize having the Villa Park Community Services 
Foundation and the Rotary Club, co-sponsor the event and each donate $5,000.  
 
Mayor Fascenelli expressed her concern that there is not enough staff, or staff time 
available to take on this event. She suggested asking the Rotary Club to take on the 
event. Councilman Barnett replied the Rotary Club does not have someone in place to 
take phone calls or the accounting. He said there is no continuity with the Rotary Club 
or the Foundation. Councilman Nelson stated they have hosted many city events and 
that they could handle this one.   
 
Councilman Barnett said he would still be involved in the event.  
 
Councilman Collacott suggested having a volunteer organization and other 
businessmen involved in the event. He does not think it fits well with the limitations of 
the city.  
 
Councilman Barnett talked about having the foundation taking over but still looking for 
monetary donation from the Rotary Club.  
 
City Manager Hildenbrand recapped that Councilman Barnett would contact the 
foundation and will bring back his findings to the January 2016 meeting.  
 
25.     Individual councilmember information items and/or required meeting 

attendance reports. 
  
Mayor Fascenelli attended the City of Anaheim and City of Orange Mayor’s prayer 
breakfasts in November. She attended a Serrano Water Board meeting and announced 
there was no assessment on the water bill for the month of November.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Mills attended a Vector Control meeting where they are still searching 
for a new general manager. They were given the authority to do the air spray up until 
March. He spoke about West Nile virus cases going up recently. Mayor Pro Tem Mills 
attended a Sanitation District meeting where there was discussion about East Orange 
Water District and Irvine Ranch.  



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 20 of 21 

 
 
Councilman Barnett relayed the Fire Authority is still in discussion on fire contracts.  
Councilman Collacott spoke about Councilman Nelson researching into other cities 
ordinances regarding loud noise and partying. He said the City of Chula Vista has an 
ordinance about underage drinking and party houses. Councilman Collacott asked City 
Manager Hildenbrand to work with the City Council to come up with an ordinance. This 
item will be brought back at the January 2016 meeting.  
  
26.      Election of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem.  
  
A motion was made by Mayor Fascenelli, seconded by Councilman Nelson, and 
approved by the following role call vote, to elect Mayor Pro Tem Mills to the position of 
Mayor in 2016.  
 
AYES:  Barnett, Collacott, Mills, Nelson and Fascenelli 
 
NOES:  None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
A motion was made by Councilman Collacott to nominate Councilman Nelson to the 
position of Mayor Pro Tem in 2016. 
 
AYES:  Collacott and Nelson 
 
NOES:  Barnett, Mills and Fascenelli 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
A motion was made by Councilwoman Fascenelli to nominate Councilman Barnett to 
the position of Mayor Pro Tem in 2016. It was approved by the follow roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Barnett, Fascenelli and Mills 
 
NOES:  Collacott and Nelson 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 



December 15, 2015 Villa Park City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 21 of 21 

 
The City Council adjourned at 12:14 p.m. The next regular meeting will be held on 
Tuesday, January 26, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
 

______________________ 
Greg Mills, Mayor  
City of Villa Park 

 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
___________________________ 
Jarad L. Hildenbrand, City Clerk 
City of Villa Park  
 
Note: The above minutes are a summary of actions. A DVD recording of this meeting 
additionally serves as an official record and is available upon request from City Hall. 


